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To The Members

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting their 17th Annual Report
for the year ended March 31, 2009. Briefly stated the financial
results of operation are: -

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars 01.04.08 to 01.04.07 to

31.03.09 31.03.08

Sales and other income 108780.88 98597.77

Profit before interest,
Depreciation and tax 6208.25 10983.67

Less: Financial Charges (Net) 5661.46 3690.86

Depreciation 1157.49 811.92

Profit / (Loss) before tax (610.70) 6480.89

Provision for Taxation
— General 1.05 1683.04
— Fringe Benefit Tax 37.00 30.00
— Deferred tax (882.60) 389.35

Profit / (Loss) after tax 233.85 4378.50

Add / (Less) Taxation for
earlier years (109.17) 26.76

Net Profit 124.68 4351.74

Add : Balance brought forward
from last year’s account 10349.88 6854.62

Amount available for
Appropriations 10474.56 11206.36

Appropriation:

Proposed Dividend 121.87 304.04

Provision for Taxation on

Proposed Dividend 20.71 51.67

Dividend Earlier Years
(including Dividend tax) 0.00 0.77

Transfer to General Reserve 0.00 500.00

Balance Carried Forward 10331.98 10349.88

During the year the Company was able to improve its performance
in terms of sales but the profitability was on the lower side. The
improvement in sales was possible due to increase in turnover of

Director’s Report
cables from Rs. 74462.88 lacs in 2007-08 to Rs. 87577.71 lacs in
2008-09. Stainless Steel Wire Products contributed Rs.7795.90
lacs in 2008-09 as compared to Rs. 11300.40 lacs in 2007-08.
Winding, Flexible & House Wire contributed Rs.7643.54 lacs in
2008-09 as against Rs.10440.63 lacs in 2007-08.  Profit after tax
is lower at Rs. 233.85 lacs during 2008-09 as compared to Rs.
4378.50 lacs during 2007-08 on account of devaluation of
inventories triggered by plummeting raw material prices combined
with significant appreciation in the dollar vis-à-vis the rupee and
higher interest costs. As a result, margins also dipped drastically
on account of excessive volatility in the raw material prices of
copper and aluminum and currency rate fluctuations. During the
year under review, Company made repurchase of FCCBs at discount
which resulted in profit of Rs.2635.58 lacs included under head
Other Income.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATIONS

Due to inadequate profits, your Directors have recommended a
dividend of Re.0.20/- per equity share (i.e. @ 10%) on the Equity
Shares of face value of Rs.2/- each for the financial year ended 31st

March, 2009, which if approved by the members at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, will be paid to:

• Those equity shareholders whose names appear in the register
of members on July 20, 2009.

• Those whose names as beneficial owners are furnished by
National Securities Depository Limited and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In the year under review, your Company made rapid strides on the
new business development, domestic retail business, capacity ex-
pansion programme and new business segments front.

The Company’s capabilities in the HT cables segment were
vindicated with the award of three prestigious projects. The
aggressive advertising campaign paid off with domestic retail sales
for house wires surging in the year under review. Capacity expansion
projects were completed within the stipulated time frame. Increasing
geographic footprint continued to remain a focus area with the
Company adding new fast-growing markets to its list of 40+
countries. With the aim of further enhancing presence in both the
domestic retail segment and international markets, the Company
embarked on strengthening distribution network in both segments
in a big way.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(FCCB)

The Company raised USD 36,000,0000 (thirty six million) by
way of allotment of 1% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
(FCCB) due 2011 in the financial Year 2006-07. The Bond has a
maturity of 5 years and one day. The conversion price has been
reset downward at Rs. 71/- per share as per reset conversion clause
in the terms & conditions of FCCB issue. Out of 7,200 bonds of
face value of USD 5,000 each, 670 Bonds were converted into
equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- each during financial year
2007-08, 2,110 Bonds were re-purchased on March 31, 2009 in
accordance with RBI Circular A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 39
dated December 8, 2008 read with ECB Guidelines. As on March
31, 2009, 4,420 bonds are outstanding for conversion.

Further, the Company has repurchased 800 Bonds on May 14,
2009 and 300 Bonds on June 12, 2009 in accordance with above
circular of RBI. Hence, as on the date of this report only 3,320
Bonds are outstanding for conversion.

The Company has duly paid the semi-annual interest payable on
outstanding Bonds on respective due dates. Unless, the Bonds
have been previously redeemed, repurchased and cancelled or
converted, the Company shall redeem the Bonds on 30 November
2011 (the “Maturity Date”) equal to the outstanding principal
amount of a Bond together with redemption premium and accrued
but unpaid interest thereon to the Maturity Date. All outstanding
bonds on the date of redemption would be redeemed at a price of
USD 7.277 per Bond, providing a Yield to Maturity (YTM) of
8.5 % compounded semi-annually. The bonds are listed and traded
at Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS (GDR)

The Global Depository Receipts (GDR) issued by the Company
are listed and traded at Luxembourg Stock Exchange. As on March
31, 2009 total outstanding GDR is 500 representing same number
of equity shares of Rs.2/- each.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company had established KEI Employee Stock Option
Scheme 2006 (“KEI ESOS 2006”) which was set up so as to offer
and grant, for the benefit of employees (excluding promoters) of
the Company, who are eligible under SEBI (Employee Stock
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999, Options of the Company, in one or more
tranches, and on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or
determined by the Board / Committee, in accordance with the
provisions of law or guidelines issued by the relevant authorities in
this regard.

Under 1st tranche of KEI Employee Stock Option Scheme 2006,
655,705 Stock Options were granted to eligible employees and
Independent Directors. The Share Allotment Committee of the
Board had allotted 129,100 equity shares of Rs.2/- each at an
exercise price of Rs.25.25/- to eligible employees / directors pursuant
to application for exercise of Options under KEI ESOS 2006.
5,960 options were forfeited due to resignation of employee.
Balance 520,645 un-exercised Options were cancelled by the Board
at its meeting held on January 31, 2009. Hence, total Options
outstanding as on March 31, 2009 is NIL. During the year no
fresh Options have been granted under KEI ESOS 2006.

Details of Options granted under KEI ESOS 2006 are annexed to
this report in accordance with SEBI (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999
and any modifications thereto as Annexure A.

RATING BY CARE

During the year under review Credit Analysis & Research Ltd
(CARE) has assigned PR1 (PR One) rating to the Commercial
Paper (CP) / Short Term Debt programme of the Company.
Further, CARE has assigned “CARE CGR 3” to the Corporate
Governance practice of the Company. Further, CARE has assigned
“CARE A” and ‘PR 1’ (PR One) rating to the Long Term & Short
Term Bank Facilities of the Company in accordance with Basel II
norms. Instrument with this rating would have strong capacity for
timely payment of short-term debt obligations and carry lowest
credit risk. CARE has assigned this rating taking into account
KEI’s vast experience in the cable industry, proven track record,
established market position, diversified and reputed clientele and
continued focus on power sector development by Government of
India.

EXPORT ORIENTED UNDERTAKING (EOU)

During the year under review, Company started Commercial
production of HT Power Cable at its Export Oriented Undertaking
Plant at Chopanki, Dist. Alwar, Bhiwadi (Rajasthan) in March
2009.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Gearing up for the pickup in industrial and infrastructure activity
in the country, the Company plans to capitalize on the opportunities
by leveraging its increased capacities, EHV cables manufacturing
capabilities, its proven presence in the EPC space, its brand equity,
visibility and recall for growing its domestic retail business and
lastly spreading its wings in newer international markets.

INCREASE IN PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Share Allotment Committee of
the Board at its meeting held on September 22, 2009 allotted
129,100 equity shares of Rs.2/- each at an exercise price of Rs. 25.25/-
to eligible employees / directors pursuant to application for exercise
of Options under KEI ESOS 2006. Due to exercise of Employees
Stock Options for allotment of equity shares the equity share
capital of the Company increased from Rs. 121,616,676 to
Rs. 121,874,876 consisting of 60,937,438 equity shares of Rs.2/-
each.

LISTING OF SHARES

Company’s 60,937,438 equity shares of Rs.2/- each are listed at
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock
Exchange (NSE) and the Company has also paid its up-to-date
listing fees to all the stock exchanges. BSE & NSE have nation-
wide trading terminals and therefore provide full liquidity to
investors. Company’s 45,433,438 equity shares of Rs.2/- each are
pending listing at Calcutta stock Exchange Association Limited
(CSE). Company has submitted all the necessary documents /
papers for listing of these shares to CSE. The Company’s equity
shares are in compulsory dematerialization form. As on March 31,
2009, 99.08% of the equity shares are held in Demat form.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock
Exchanges, a separate section titled Report on Corporate
Governance has been included in this annual report. Your directors
are pleased to report that your Company is fully compliant as on
31st March, 2009 with the SEBI Guidelines on Corporate
Governance.

DIRECTORS

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1956
and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Vijay Bhushan
and Mr. Vikram Bhartia, Directors of the Company, retire by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Both the
Directors are eligible and have offered themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

Increase / revision of remuneration of Executive Directors

On review of duties and responsibilities assigned to Mr. Anil
Gupta, CMD and looking to the time devoted by him, the Board
of Directors of your Company on recommendation of
Remuneration & Compensation Committee have decided to
increase remuneration payable to him w.e.f. August 01, 2009 for a
period of three years.

Further, as per the terms of appointment of Mr. Rajeev Gupta,
ED (Finance), the Board of Directors of your Company on
recommendation of Remuneration & Compensation Committee
have decided to increase / revise remuneration payable to him
w.e.f. 01/04/2009, as detailed in the Explanatory Statement forming
part of the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the

Companies Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, it is hereby confirmed

a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2009, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed;

b) That the directors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year
under review;

c) That the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) That the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2009 on a ‘going concern’ basis.

FIXED DEPOSITS

There are no overdue fixed deposits as on 31st March, 2009.

AUDITORS

M/s Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, auditors of
the Company will retire at the conclusion of the ensuing AGM
and are eligible for reappointment as per certificate furnished by
them under section 224 (1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information as per Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956
read with Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 is as
given below:

Name Designation Gross Remuneration Qualification Experience Date of joining Age

Anil Gupta CMD Rs.4019323 B.Com 28 Years 31.12.92 49yrs

Rajeev Gupta ED (Finance) Rs.2724560 Chartered 16 Years 14.12.93 45yrs
Accountant

Mr. Anil Gupta, CMD is relative of Mrs. Archana Gupta (Director) of the Company.

PARTICUALRS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORP TION AND FOREGIN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

The information as regards conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required
under section 217(1) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed hereto as Annexure B and forms
an integral part of the report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for
significant contribution made by employees through their
dedication, hard work and commitment.

Your Directors also acknowledge the support extended by the
bankers, government agencies, shareholders and investors at large
and look forward to having the same support in our endeavour to
grow consistently.

For and on behalf of the Board

New Delhi (ANIL GUPTA )

June 20, 2009 Chairman-cum-

Managing Director
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ANNEXURE - A
Disclosure under SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999:
A. Summary of Status of Employee Stock Options Granted

The Position of the existing scheme is summarized as under:

S. No. Particulars KEI Employee Stock Option Scheme 2006 - 1st tranche
1 Details of the Meetings Board Meeting approved KEI ESOS 2006 on September

12 2006.Approval of KEI ESOS 2006 by the members of
the Company at the Extra ordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on 23rd November 2006.Remuneration &
Compensation Committee granted stock options to eligible
employees & directors on August 17, 2008.

2 Maximum Options approved 200,000 shares of face value Rs.10/- each (pre-split) now
adjusted to 10,00,000 shares of face value Rs.2/- each.

3 Pricing Formula At a price not less than the face value of the shares of the
Company
Grant Price (Rs.) : 25.25*
Market Price (Rs.) : 75.75#
Grant dated 17.08.2008
#Closing Price on the National Stock Exchange.
*At approx. 66.67% discount to Market Price.

4 Option Granted 655,705
5 Option Vested 655,705
6 Option Exercised 129,100
7 Option forfeited/Surrendered 5,960
8 Option Lapsed/Un-exercised

Options cancelled 520,645
9 Total Number of Option is in force Nil

10 Variation in terms of ESOP Not Applicable
11 Total number of share arising as a

result of exercise of options 129,100
12 Money realized by exercise of

options (Rs. in Lacs) 32.60

B. Employee wise details of options granted during the financial year 2008-09 to:

i) Senior Managerial Personnel N.A.
ii) Employees holding 5% or more of the total N.A.

number of options granted during the year.
iii) Employees who were issued shares equal No employee of the Company has been awarded more

to or exceeding 1% of the issued then or equal to 1% of the issued capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at
the time of grant.

C. Weighted average exercise price of Options granted during the year whose

i) Exercise price equal market price (Rs.) N.A.
ii) Exercise price is greater than market price (Rs.) N.A.
iii) Exercise price is less than market price (Rs.) N.A.

Weighted average fair value of Options granted during the year whose
i) Exercise price equal market price (Rs.) N.A.
ii) Exercise price is greater than market price (Rs.) N.A.
iii) Exercise price is less than market price (Rs.) N.A.
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ANNEXURE B

Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earning and
outgo under section 217(1)(e) read with Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors)
Rules, 1988 and forming part of Director’s report for the year ended 31st March, 2009.

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(a) Energy conservation measures taken : In view of measures taken in earlier years no fresh

measures were required to be taken during the year.
Power consumption is continuously monitored.

(b) Additional investments and proposal if any, being : No major additional investment is required.
implemented for conservation of energy.

(c) Impact of the measures at (a) & (b) above for : Not applicable
reduction of energy consumption and consequent
impact on the cost of production of goods.

(d) Total energy consumption & energy consumption : Not Applicable
per unit of production as per Form A of
the Annexure.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(a) Research & Development: Details in house analytical laboratory is there for the fine-tuning of operations. Accordingly,
success has been achieved in increasing the quality of goods with higher yield percentage.

(b) Technology Absorption: The Company neither entered into any technical foreign collaboration nor received/ imported
any technology from any foreign organisation.

3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

(a) Activities relating to export initiatives taken to increase exports, developments of new export markets for products
and export plans.

Cables : Company participated in exhibitions in foreign
countries for promotion of its products. Products as per
requirements of foreign markets were
developed.Stainless Steel Wires The Company was
able to develop new customers, new markets with its
thrust on exports during the year. Foreign customers
were regularly followed up by visits as well as by other
means.

(b) Total foreign exchange used & earned:

Earnings Rs. 16208.82 lacs

Outgo Rs. 6384.42 Lacs

For and on behalf of the Board

New Delhi (ANIL GUPTA)
June 20, 2009 Chairman-cum-Managing Director
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1. Company’s Philosophy:

The Company believes in adopting best practices in the area of corporate governance and follows the principles of full
transparency and accountability by providing information on various issues concerning the Company’s business and
financial performance to its shareholders. The Company’s activities are carried out in accordance with good corporate
practices and the Company is constantly striving to better them and adopt the best practices. It is firmly believed that
good governance practices would ensure efficient conduct of the affairs of the Company and help the Company achieve
its goal of maximising value for all its stakeholders. The Company will continue to focus its resources, strengths and
strategies to achieve its vision of becoming leader in Power Cable Industry.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors & Senior Management. This Code is available on the
Company’s website. In addition, Company has framed Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements of the revised guidelines on corporate governance stipulated
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges.

The Board considers itself as the Trustee of its Shareholders. During the period under review, the Board continued its
pursuit by adopting and monitoring of corporate strategies, prudent business plans, major risks and ensuring that the
Company pursues policies and procedures to satisfy its social, legal and ethical responsibilities.

2. Board of Directors:

(i) The Company has 7 Directors with an Executive Chairman. Of the 7 Directors, 5 are Non-Executive Directors and 4 are
Independent Directors. The Composition of the Board is in conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements
entered into with the Stock Exchanges.

(ii) Mr. Sunil Gupta, Director of the Company ceased as Director w.e.f. August 28, 2008 pursuant to his un-willingness to
be re-appointed as Director at the last AGM held on August 28, 2008.

(iii) None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees
across all the companies in which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other Public
Limited Companies as on March 31, 2009 have been made by the Directors.

(iv) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year and
the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in other companies are given
below. Other directorships do not include alternate directorships, directorships of private limited companies, Section 25
companies and of companies incorporated outside India. Chairmanship / Membership of Board Committees include
only Audit and Shareholder / Investors Grievance Committees.

Name of the Category No. of Attendance No. of No. of
Directors Board at Last Directorship Committee

Meeting AGM in other positions held in other
attended Public Public Limited

Limited Companies

Companies Chairman Member

Mr. Anil Gupta (CMD) Non-Independent, 7 Yes 1 None None
Executive

Report on
Corporate Governance
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Name of the Category No. of Attendance No. of No. of
Directors Board at Last Directorship Committee

Meeting AGM in other positions held in other
attended Public Public Limited

Limited Companies

Companies Chairman Member

Mr. Pawan Bholusaria Independent, 7 Yes 2 None 2
Non-Executive

Mr. K.G. Somani Independent, 5 No 1 None None
Non-Executive

Mr. Vijay Bhushan Independent, 6 No 4 2 3
Non-Executive

Mr. Vikram Bhartia Independent, 6 Yes None None None
Non-Executive

Mrs. Archana Gupta Non-Independent, 5 No 2 None None
Non-Executive

Mr. Sunil Gupta* Non-Independent, 1 No None None None
Non-Executive

Mr. Rajeev Gupta Non-Independent, 7 Yes None None None
Executive

*Note: Mr. Sunil Gupta, ceased to be Director w.e.f. August 28, 2008.

Meeting of Board of Directors

There were7 (Seven) Board Meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2009. These were on 18.06.2008,
28.07.2008, 28.08.2008, 31.10.2008, 31.01.2009, 20.03.2009 & 31.03.2009. The Board of Directors of the Company
passed resolutions by circulation pursuant to Section 289 on 21.08.2008, 08.10.2008, 17.12.2008 and 30.12.2008.

The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held on August 28, 2008.

All the Directors except Chairman-cum-Managing Director of the Company are liable for retirement by rotation.
However, he shall be reckoned as a director for the purpose of fixing the number of directors to retire.

Code of Conduct

The Company has framed Code of Conduct which is applicable to all Directors and members of Senior Management.
Pursuant to this Code all the Directors & Senior Management have affirmed compliance with this Code for the year
ended March 31, 2009. A declaration of compliance of this Code signed by CMD is annexed as Annexure to this report.

3. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements
with the Stock Exchanges read with Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are broadly as under:
• Overview of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that

the financial statements reflect a true and fair position.
• Recommending the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also

approval for payment for any other services.
• Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report, including quarterly / half yearly financial information.
• Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, focusing primarily on:

— Any changes in accounting policies and practices;
— Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;
— Qualifications in draft audit report;
— Significant adjustments arising out of audit;
— Compliance with accounting standard;
— Compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements;
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— Any related party transactions as per Accounting Standard 18.
• Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management policies.
• Disclosure of contingent liabilities.
• Reviewing with the management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems.
• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon.
• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.
• Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in payments to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in

case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
• Reviewing compliances as regards the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy.
• Mandatory review of following information:

— Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operation;
— Statement of significant related party transactions, submitted by management;
— Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by Statutory Auditors and
— Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Internal Auditor.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, five Audit Committee Meetings were held on 02.05.2008, 18.06.2008,
28.07.2008, 31.10.2008 and 29.01.2009.

Mr. Pawan Bholusaria, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on
August 28, 2008.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance of the Members in the meetings are as under:

Name of the Director Category Profession No. of Meetings attended

Mr. Pawan Bholusaria Director (Chairman) Chartered Accountant 5

Mr. K.G. Somani Director (Member) Chartered Accountant 3

Mr. Vikram Bhartia Director (Member) Business 5

Mr. Kishore Kunal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.

4. Shareholders Grievance Committee:

The “Shareholders Grievance Committee” looks in to redressing investor’s grievances/complaints such as non-receipt of
notices, annual reports, dividends, revalidation of Dividend Warrants and share transfers related works. The Committee
also approves issue of duplicate share certificates etc. During the year ended March 31, 2009, four meeting of the
Committee were held on 18.06.2008, 28.07.2008, 31.10.2008 and 31.01.2009.

The composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meeting are as under:

Name of Director Category Profession No. of meetings attended

Mr. Vijay Bhushan Director (Chairman) Business 4

Mr. Sunil Gupta Director (Member) Business 1

Mr. Vikram Bhartia Director (Member) Business 4

Mr. Anil Gupta CMD (Member) Business 2

* Note: Mr. Sunil Gupta ceased to be Member of the Shareholders Grievance Committee w.e.f. August 28, 2008 and Mr.
Anil Gupta, CMD of the Company was inducted as Member of the Committee from August 28, 2008.

Number of Shareholders complaints received during the year ended March 31, 2009 and resolved were 7, number of
complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders was Nil. Number of pending share transfer as on March 31,
2009 was Nil.

The Company has designated an E-mail ID cs@kei-ind.com exclusively for the purpose of receiving various queries,
complaints etc. of the investors & to take necessary follow up action.

Mr. Kishore Kunal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.
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5. Remuneration & Compensation Committee:

Although this is a non-mandatory requirement, the Company has constituted a Remuneration & Compensation
Committee for determining the remuneration of its directors. The Remuneration and Compensation Committee also
have the following additional powers and functions:
a. Formulate suitable employee’s stock option scheme in terms of the SEBI (ESOS & ESPS) Guidelines, 1999 for the

benefit of employees and directors of the Company.
b. Adopt rules and regulations for implementing the Scheme from time to time.
c. Identify the Employees eligible to participate under the Scheme.
d. Grant Options to the identified Eligible Employees and determine the date of Grant.
e. Determine the number of Options to be granted to each Grantee.
f. Determine the number of Shares of the Company to be covered by each Option granted under the Scheme.
g. Determine the method for exercising the Vested Options.
h. Determine the Exercise price of the Options granted.
i. Determine the procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the number of options.
j. Determine the terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Scheme, of any Option granted hereunder.
k. Approve forms or agreements for use under the Scheme.
l. Construe and interpret the terms of the Scheme, and the Options granted pursuant to the Scheme.
m. Frame suitable policy, procedure and system to comply with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition

of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and
Unfair Trade Practices relating to the Securities market) Regulations, 2003 to be followed by the Participants.

n. Frame rules and regulations, prescribe forms and issue circulars or orders in relation to the Scheme and may from
time to time amend, recall or replace such rules and regulations, forms, orders and circulars.

o. Decide all other matters that must be determined in connection with an Option under the Scheme.

The “Remuneration & Compensation Committee” shall be deemed to be “Remuneration Committee” within the
meaning of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 and for all other purposes
as may be required under any / all Acts, Rules, Regulations, Circulars etc, for the time being or as amended from time to
time”.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, one meeting was held on 02.05.2008.

The composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meeting are as under:

Name of Director Category Profession No. of meetings attended

Mr. Vikram Bhartia Director (Chairman) Business 1

Mr. Vijay Bhushan Director (Member) Business None

Mr. Pawan Bholusaria Director (Member) Chartered Accountant 1

Mr. Kishore Kunal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.

6. Share Allotment Committee:

Share Allotment Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company with detailed terms of reference
which include, inter-alia, the following powers:

• To consider and allot the equity shares upon conversion of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), as
requested by the bondholders from time to time in the Form of conversion notice.

• To consider and allot the equity shares upon exercise of option by the eligible employees.

• To consider and allot the equity shares upon conversion of other convertible securities issued by the Company from
time to time.

• To exercise all other powers as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, one meeting was held on 22.09.2008 for allotment of equity shares upon
exercise of Employees Stock Options by eligible employees / directors under KEI ESOS 2006.
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The composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meeting are as under:

Name of Director Category Profession No. of meetings attended

Mr. Pawan Bholusaria Director (Chairman) Chartered Accountant 1

Mr. Vijay Bhushan Director (Member) Business 1

Mr. Anil Gupta Director (Member) Business 1

Mr. Kishore Kunal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Details of Remuneration paid to Executive Directors for the Year ended on March 31, 2009:

The aggregate value of salary, perquisites and commission paid for the year ended March 31, 2009 to the CMD and
Whole Time Director are as follows:

Name Salary Commission Co.’s Cont. to P.F Perquisites Sitting Fees Total

Mr. Anil Gupta, CMD 33,00,000 NIL 9,360 7,09,963 NIL 40,19,323

Mr. Rajeev Gupta, 25,75,200 NIL 9,360 1,40,000 NIL 27,24,560
ED (Finance)

Total 67,43,883

Details of Sitting fees:

Apart from the Remuneration paid to Executive Directors, the Company pays sitting fees to all Non-executive and
Independent Directors @Rs.10,000/- per Board / Committee meeting.

The sitting fees paid for the year ended on March 31, 2009 to Non-executive and Independent Directors are as follows:
Mr. Sunil Gupta Rs. 20,000/-
Mr. Pawan Bholusaria Rs. 1,40,000/-
Mr. K.G. Somani Rs. 80,000/-
Mr. Vikram Bhartia Rs. 1,60,000/-
Mr. Vijay Bhushan Rs. 1,10,000/-
Mrs.Archana Gupta Rs. 50,000/-

7. General Body Meetings:

(I) Annual General Meeting (AGM) Details:

The last three Annual General Meeting were held at the Hamdard Convention Centre (Hall no.1) Jamia Hamdard
Nagar, Near Batra Hospital, New Delhi-110 062 as per details given below:

Year Day Date Time No. of Special Resolution passed at AGM

2006 Thursday June 15, 2006 10.00 A.M 4

2007 Thursday September 13, 2007 10.00 A.M 2

2008 Thursday August 28, 2008 10.00 A.M 2

(II) Postal Ballot

No Special resolution was put through Postal Ballot in the last Annual General Meeting. At the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, there is no resolution proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot.

8. Disclosures:

(I) Related Party Transactions

There have been no materially significant related party transactions with the Company’s subsidiaries, promoters,
directors, management or their relatives which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company.
Members may refer to Disclosures of transactions with related parties i.e. Promoters, Directors, Relatives, Subsidiary
or Management made in the Balance Sheet in Schedule “W” Notes to Accounts at Note No. 25.
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(II) Compliance with Regulations
The Company has complied fully with the requirements of the regulatory authorities on capital markets. There
have been no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matters related to the capital markets, nor has
any penalty or stricture been imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory
authority.

(III) Accounting Standard
The Company has followed the accounting standards laid down by the Companies Act, 1956.

(IV) Subsidiary
The Company does not have any holding or subsidiary company.

(V) Risk Management
The audit committee regularly reviews the risk management strategy of the Company to ensure the effectiveness
of risk management policies and procedures.

(VI) CEO / CFO Certificate
The Chairman-cum-Managing Director and Executive Director (Finance) of the Company have furnished the
requisite certificate to the Board of Directors under Clause 49V of the Listing Agreement.

(VII) Number of Shares and convertible instruments held by Non-executive Directors

Name of Director Category No. of shares held
Mr. Sunil Gupta* Non-executive Director 10,500
Mrs. Archana Gupta Promoter, Non-executive Director 837,315
Mr. Pawan Bholusaria Non-executive Independent Director 10,500
Mr. K.G. Somani Non-executive Independent Director 1,000
Mr. Vijay Bhushan Non-executive Independent Director 10,000
Mr. Vikram Bhartia Non-executive Independent Director 10,000

Note: Mr. Sunil Gupta ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f. August 28, 2008.

(VIII)Secretarial Audit
A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out secretarial audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and
the total issued and listed capital. The secretarial audit report confirms that the total issued / paid up capital is in
agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held
with NSDL and CDSL.

9. Means of Communication:
The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company are published in leading newspapers i.e. The Economic
Times (all editions), Business Standard (all editions), Times of India (Delhi), The Financial Express and Navbharat
Times. The results are also displayed on the Company’s website www.kei-ind.com. The financial results and shareholding
of the Company is also posted at the website of SEBI at http//sebiedifar.nic.in as the Company is filing the same under
edifar system as per the requirement of Clause 51 of the Listing Agreement. Also, financial results and shareholding
pattern of the Company are available at www.bseindia.com & www.nseindia.com. The Annual Report of the Company
is sent to all the shareholders at their registered addresses. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part
of the Annual Report.

10. General Shareholders Information:

(a) 17th Annual General Meeting- Day, Time and Venue

Day Date Time  Venue

Monday July 20, 2009 10.00 A.M Air Force Auditorium,
Subroto Park, New Delhi-110 010.
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(b) Financial Calendar
Financial Year : 1st April to 31st March

Adoption of quarterly results for the quarter ending (tentative and subject to change):
June, 2009 : 3rd / 4th week of July, 2009
September, 2009 : 3rd / 4th week of October, 2009
December, 2009 : 3rd / 4th week of January, 2010
March, 2010 : 3rd/ 4th week of May, 2010
Date of Book closure (Both days inclusive) : July 13, 2009 to July 20, 2009

Dividend payment date: Dividend payment on or after July 25, 2009 but within the statutory time limit of 30 days,
subject to Shareholders approval.

(c) Registered Office : D-90, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-I, New Delhi- 110 20 (India).

(d) Listing on Stock Exchanges : Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd
: National Stock Exchange of India Ltd
: The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd
: The Luxembourg Stock Exchange*

* Note : Global Depository Receipt (GDR) & Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) are listed at Luxembourg
Stock Exchange.

The Company has paid in time the annual listing fees to each of the said Stock Exchanges.

(e) Stock Code:
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd : KEI
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd : 517569
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd : 1422
Trading Symbol of BSE & NSE are respectively : “KEI INDUSTRI” & “KEI”
Note: Global Depository Receipt (GDR) & 1% USD 36 Million Foreign Currency Convertible Bond (FCCB) due
2011 are listed outside India at Luxembourg Stock Exchange.
The ISIN Code of GDR & FCCB are US4824682045 & XS0273861137 respectively.

(f) Stock Market Data

Bombay Stock National Stock Exchange
Exchange Ltd (BSE) of India Ltd (NSE)

Month High Low High Low
April, 2008 73.00 58.75 73.00 59.00
May, 2008 74.80 57.00 74.50 57.00
June, 2008 61.10 40.00 60.05 40.10
July, 2008 51.10 35.70 51.40 35.50
August, 2008 46.00 36.20 45.85 36.50
September, 2008 39.75 21.30 39.85 22.00
October, 2008 27.90 14.85 27.10 15.00
November, 2008 20.90 10.60 20.50 10.15
December, 2008 18.75 09.00 18.65 09.75
January, 2009 16.00 10.25 15.90 10.25
February, 2009 11.35 09.00 11.30 08.95
March, 2009 10.95 08.15 10.80 08.15

(g) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

MAS SERVICES LTD., T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - II, New Delhi - 110 020, Ph:- 26387281/
82/83, Fax:- 26387384, email:- info@masserv.com, website : www.masserv.com
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(h) Share Transfer System
With a view to expedite the process of share transfer, the Board of Directors has delegated the power of share
transfer to M/s MAS Services Ltd, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. The Share for transfer received in Physical
mode by the Company, are transferred expeditiously and thereafter option letter is sent to the transferee(s) for
dematerialization, confirmation in respect of the request for dematerialization of shares is sent to the respective
Depositories, i.e. National Security Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd
within 7 days.

(i) Dematerialization of Shares:
The shares of the Company are permitted for trading on dematerialized form only. The Company’s shares are
available for trading in the depository system of both NSDL and CDSL. As on March 31, 2009, 60,376,358 equity
shares of Rs.2/- each forming 99.08 % of the share capital of the Company stands dematerialized. Security Code
No. with NSDL and CDSL is- ISIN-INE 878B01027.

(j) Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2009

Category No. of No. of Shares No. of Shares % of
Shareholder (face value of in demat shareholding

Rs. 2/- each) form
Promoters 7 21848466 21848466 35.85
Bodies Corporate 647 14634930 14603430 24.02
NRI/OCBs/Clearing Members/Trust 530 1069236 1011236 1.75
Bank/ Financial Institutions/
Mutual Funds/ FIIs 17 8355621 8355621 13.71
Indian Public 26984 15028685 14557105 24.67
GDR shares 1 500 500 0.00
Total 28186 60937438 60376358 100.00

(k) Distribution Schedule of Shareholding as on March 31, 2009

No. of % to Total Shareholding of No. of Amount % of
Shareholders Nominal Value of Rs. Shares in Rs. Total

27120 96.22 Up to 5000 8797631 17595262 14.44

578 02.05 5001 to 10000 2173258 4346516 03.57

241 00.85 10001 to 20000 1733330 3466660 02.84

67 00.24 20001 to 30000 837514 1675028 01.37

43 00.15 30001 to 40000 760742 1521484 01.25

21 00.08 40001 to 50000 475293 950586 00.78

53 00.19 50001 to 100000 1994017 3988034 03.27

63 00.22 100001 and Above 44165653 88331306 72.48

28186 100.00 Total 60937438 121874876 100.00

(l) Liquidity of Shares
The equity shares of the Company are listed at three Stock Exchanges and thus is liquid security. 6,09,37,438
equity shares of face value of Rs.2/- each are listed at The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE) & Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). 4,54,33,438 Equity Shares are pending for listing at The Calcutta Stock Exchange.
Company has provided all the necessary details for listing of these shares to the Calcutta Stock Exchange and is
following up the matter with that Stock Exchange.

(m) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Convertible Instruments
The Company had issued & allotted Global Depository Receipt (GDR) on September 16, 2005, as on March 31,
2009, 500 equity shares of Rs.2/- each representing 500 GDR is outstanding for conversion.
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Company raised USD 36,000,0000 (thirty six million) by way of allotment of 1% Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds (FCCB) due 2011 in the financial Year 2006-07. The Bond has a maturity of 5 years and one day. The
conversion price has been re-set at Rs. 71/- per share as per reset conversion clause in the terms & conditions of
FCCB issue. Out of 7,200 bonds of face value of USD 5,000 each, 670 Bonds were converted into equity shares
of face value of Rs. 2/- each during financial year 2007-08, 2,110 Bonds were re-purchased on March 31, 2009 in
accordance with RBI Circular A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 39 dated December 8, 2008 read with ECB Guidelines.
As on March 31, 2009, 4,420 bonds were outstanding for conversion.

Under KEI Employee Stock Option Scheme 2006 framed by the Company in accordance with SEBI (Employees
Stock Option Scheme & Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, 655,705 Employee Stock Options
were granted in 1st tranche. The Share Allotment Committee of the Board had allotted 129,100 equity shares of
Rs.2/- each to eligible employees / directors pursuant to application for exercise of Options under KEI ESOS 2006.
5,960 options were forfeited due to resignation of employee. Balance 520,645 un-exercised Options were cancelled
by the Board. Hence, total Options outstanding as on March 31, 2009 is NIL. During the year no fresh Options
have been granted under KEI ESOS 2006.

(n) Plant Locations:
1) SP-919, 920 & 922, RIICO Industrial Area, Phase-III, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar (Raj.)-301 019.
2) 99/2/7 Madhuban Industrial Estate, Village Rakholi, Silvassa(D&H)-396 240.
3) Plot No. A- 280/281/282/283 RIICO Industrial Area, Chopanki, Distt. Alwar-301 019.

(o) Address for Correspondence:
The shareholders may address their communication/ suggestion/ grievances/ queries to our Share Transfer Agent:

MAS SERVICES LTD., T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - II, New Delhi - 110 020, Ph:- 26387281/
82/83, Fax:- 26387384, email:- info@masserv.com, website : www.masserv.com

11. Compliance Officer
The Board had designated Mr. Kishore Kunal, Company Secretary as Compliance Officer.
Address: D-90, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-I, New Delhi-110 020.
E-mail: cs@kei-ind.com
Phone: 011-26818840, Fax: 011-26811959

12. Non-Mandatory Requirements

(I) Non-executive Chairman
The Company does not have non-executive chairman and no expenses are being incurred & reimbursed in this
regard.

(II) Remuneration Committee
The Company has constituted Remuneration & Compensation Committee as discussed in section 5 above.

(III) Shareholder Rights
The quarterly and half yearly results are not being sent to the personal address of shareholders as the quarterly
performance and financial results of the Company are published in the Newspaper having wide circulation in
India and the results are posted on the SEBI website www.sebiedifar.nic.in. The quarterly/ half-yearly/ annual
financial results are also posted on the website of the Company www.kei-ind.com. Also, financial results and
shareholding pattern of the Company are available at www.bseindia.com & www.nseindia.com.

(IV) Whistle Blower Policy
The Board has approved the Whistle Blower Policy, a mechanism for employees to report to the management
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct. The
mechanism also provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism
and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. During the year
under review no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee.
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DECLARATION BY THE CHAIRMAN & CEO UNDER CLAUSE 49 (1D)
OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

I hereby confirm that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with
the code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management, as approved by the Board, for the financial Year ended March 31,
2009.

New Delhi ANIL GUPTA
June 20, 2009 Chairman-cum-Managing Director

AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE

TO THE MEMBERS OF KEI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by KEI INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the year
ended March 31, 2009 as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of Company’s Management. Our examination
was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month with the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Chartered Accountant

New Delhi (PRAVEEN KUMAR JAIN)
June 20, 2009 Partner

M. No : 85629
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To the members of
KEI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of KEI
INDUSTRIES LIMITED as at 31st March, 2009 and
also the Profit and Loss Account and the cash flow
statement for the year ended on that date annexed
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatements. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by the
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2003 issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the
Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and
5 of the said order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in
Paragraph 3 above, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the company so far as
appears from our examination of the books;

Auditors’ Report
c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and

the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss
Account and the cash flow statement dealt with by
this report comply with the accounting standards
referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed there
under;

e) On the basis of written representations received
from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, we report that none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2009 from being
appointed as a director of the Company in terms of
clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956;

f ) In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
said accounts read together with the significant
accounting policies and notes thereon give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956,
in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India;

i. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2009;

ii. in the case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the
profit for the year ended on that date; and

iii. in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the
cash flow of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Place : New Delhi (PRAVEEN KUMAR JAIN)
Dated : 20th June, 2009 Partner

M. No. 85629
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
Annexure referred to in paragraph ‘3’ of the Auditors’ Report
to the Members of KEI Industries Ltd on the accounts for
the year ended March 31, 2009

(i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records to show
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Company has a programme
of physically verifying all its fixed assets over a period
of three years, which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its fixed assets. In accordance with this
programme, some of the fixed assets were physically
verified by the management during the year. The
discrepancies noticed on such verification between
the physical balances and the fixed assets records
were not material and have been properly dealt with
in the books of account.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, a substantial part of the
fixed assets has not been disposed off by the
Company during the year.

(ii) (a) During the year, the inventories have been physically
verified by the management. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the
management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature
of its business.

(c) On the basis of our examination of the record of
inventories, we are of the opinion that, the Company
is maintaining proper records of inventories. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventories as compared to book records were not
material and have been properly dealt with in the
books of account.

(iii) (a) There is one party covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 to
which Company has given deposits as per
contractual obligations. The maximum amount
involved during the year was Rs. 60,00,000/- and
the year end balance of deposit granted to such
party was Rs.60,00,000/-. ( Refer Note No 22 (a)
& (b) of Schedule “W”.)

(b) In our opinion, terms and conditions on which
deposits have been given to such party listed in the
register maintained under Section 301 of Companies

Act, 1956 are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
interest of the Company. No interest was charged
from the party, since these are deposits against
premises taken on rent.

(c) No principal amount was due for repyament, no
interest was charged from the party, since these were
deposits against premises taken on rent. (Refer Note
No 22 (a) & (b)of Schedule “W”).

(d) There is no overdue amount of deposit granted to
Companies, firm or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

(e) The company has taken deposits from two
Companies and five other parties covered in register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956. The maximum amount involved during
the year was Rs.72,96,103/- and the year end
balance of deposits taken from such parties was Rs.
30,60,000/-.

f ) In our opinion, the rate of interest where applicable
and other terms and conditions on which deposits
have been taken from Companies, firms or other
parties listed in the register maintained under
Section 301 of Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima
facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

g) The Company is regular in repaying the principal
amounts as stipulated and also in the payment of
interest, where applicable, in case of deposits taken
from Companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are adequate internal
control systems, commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business with regard to
the purchase of inventories, fixed assets and with regard
to the sale of goods and services during the year. Further,
on the basis of our examination and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have not
come across nor have any information of any instances
of major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control
systems.

(v) According to the information and explanations given
to us, during the year, there were no transactions that
need to be entered into the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act 1956. Accordingly,
paragraph (V) (a) and (b) of the Order are not
applicable.

(vi)  In our opinion and according to the information and
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explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of sections 58A and 58AA or any
other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 1956
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
1975 with regard to the deposits accepted from the
public. As per the information and explanations given
to us, no order on the Company under the aforesaid
sections has been passed by the Company Law Board
or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank
of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal
audit system commensurate with its size and nature of
its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance
of cost records under section 209 (1)(d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 and are of the opinion that, prime
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(ix) (a) According to the records of the Company and
information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, the
Company has been regularly depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees state insurance, income tax, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, sales tax, wealth
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities. We are informed there
are no undisputed statutory dues as of March 31,
2009 outstanding for a period of more than six
months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given
to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there are no disputed dues of customs duty,
wealth tax & cess which have not been deposited.
The particulars of disputed dues on account of
income tax, fringe benefit tax, sales tax, excise duty
and service tax matters that have not been deposited
by the Company are as follows :-

Period to
Name of the Statute Nature of the Due Amount which the Forum where dispute is pending

Rs. amount
relates

Income Tax Act Fringe Benefit Tax 3,77,687/- 2006-07 Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax

Income Tax 90,771/- 2006-07 Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax

Sales Tax Act Local Sales Tax 3,06,979/- 1988-89 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax

Local Sales Tax 3,74,862/- 1987-88 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax

Central Sales Tax 67,995/- 1988-89 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax

Central Sales Tax 1,00,084/- 1987-88 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax

Central Sales Tax 7,17,205/- 1987-88 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax

Central Excise Act Excise Duty 1,78,24,799/- 2006-07 CESTAT

Excise Duty 32,26,349/- 2005-06 CESTAT

Excise Duty 1,92,39,496/- 2007-08 CESTAT

Excise Duty 24,82,163/- 2008-09 Commissioner (appeals)

Excise Duty 1,31,98,105/- 2007-08 CESTAT

Excise duty 12,38,912/- 2007-08 Commissioner (appeals)

Finance Act Service Tax 1,31,495/- 2007-08 Commissioner(appeals)

Service Tax 3,61,171/- 2006-07 Commissioner (appeals)

(x) The Company does not have accumulated losses as at
the year ended March 31, 2009. Further, the Company
has not incurred any cash losses during the year ended
March 31, 2009 and in the immediately preceding
financial year ended March 31, 2008.

(xi) According to the records of the Company examined
by us and on the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to banks or debenture holders during the year.
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(xii) As the Company has not granted any loans and
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of
shares, debentures and other securities, paragraph 4(xii)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) As the Company is not a chit fund / nidhi / mutual
benefit funds / society to which the provisions of special
statute relating to chit fund are applicable, paragraph
4(xiii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiv) As the Company is not dealing or trading in shares,
securities, debentures and other investments,
paragraph 4(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) We are informed that during the period, the Company
has not given any guarantee during the year for loans
taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

(xvi) We are informed that the Company had obtained term
loans during the year and term loans were applied for
the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, we report that during the year
short term funds have not been used to finance long
term investments.

(xviii) According to the information and explanation given to
us the Company has not made any preferential
allotment of shares to parties and companies covered
in the register maintained under section 301 of the
Act.

(xix) The Company has not issued any secured debentures
during the year.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by a public
issue during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 4(xx) of the order are not applicable.

(xxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed and
information and explanations given by the
management, we report that, no fraud on or by the
Company has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit for the year ended March 31, 2009.

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Place : New Delhi (PRAVEEN KUMAR JAIN)
Dated : 20th June, 2009 Partner

M. No. 85629
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2009

As at As at
Schedule 31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

I. SOURCES OF FUNDS :

1. Shareholder’s Funds:
a) Share Capital “A” 121874876 121616676
b) Reserves & Surplus “B” 1843877162 1965752038 1949127050 2070743726

2. Loan Funds:
a) Secured Loans “C” 2307022227 1909095517
b) Unsecured Loans “D” 1372165000 3679187227 1510405130 3419500647

3. Deferred Tax:
a) Deferred Tax Liabilities 189668364 132292253
b) Less: Deferred Tax Assets 189668364 — 18677716 113614537

5644939265 5603858910

II. APPLICATION OF FUNDS :

1. Fixed Assets “E”
a) Gross Block 3094698479 2184482037
b) Less : Depreciation 367352814 270311949

2727345665 1914170088
c) Capital Work in progress “F” 66752418 2794098083 399741192 2313911280

2. Investments “G” 1039225 3170425
3. Foreign Currency Monetary Item “H” 1209307 —

Translation Difference Account (FCMITDA)
4. Current Assets, Loan & Advances:

a) Inventories “I” 1574688730 2411249548
b) Sundry Debtors “J” 2506561232 2586727387
c) Cash & Bank Balances “K” 230210968 323643740
d) Loans & Advances “L” 467244965 472105460
e) Other Current Assets “M” 19913319 4328999

4798619214 5798055134
Less : Current Liabilities and Provisions “N” 1950026564 2511277929
Net Current Assets 2848592650 3286777205

5644939265 5603858910
Notes on Accounts “W”

As per our Separate report of even date attached

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(PRAVEEN KUMAR JAIN) (ANIL GUPTA) (RAJEEV GUPTA)
Partner Chairman-cum-Managing Director Executive Director (Finance)
M.No- 85629

Place : New Delhi (KISHORE KUNAL) (ADARSH JAIN)
Dated : 20th June, 2009 Company Secretary Asst. General Manager (Finance)
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2009

Year Ended Year Ended
Schedule 31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

I. INCOME
Gross Sales Less Returns 10557643943 9806484235
Less : Excise Duty 860853544 1070227787
Net Sales 9696790399 8736256448
Job Work 3372715 6324894
Income From Turnkey Projects “O” 23572977 4328999
Other Income “P” 293497732 42639195
Increase/[Decrease] in Stock “Q” (620261709) 527822385

9396972114 9317371921

II. EXPENDITURE
Materials “R” 7503619247 7046860883
Manufacturing,Selling & Other Expenses “S” 1187333295 930724525
Increase/[Decrease]Excise Duty on Stock (91097473) 52774352
Payments to and Provision for Employees “T” 167517796 151289149
Managerial Remunaration “U” 7303883 37355704
Financial Charges “V” 566145794 369086333
Depreciation & Amortisation 115749063 81192434
Amortisation of FCMITDA 1470594 —

9458042199 8669283380

III. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX [I-II] (61070085) 648088541
Less : Provision For Taxation
– Current Tax 105000 168304430
– Fringe Benefit tax 3700000 3000000
– Deferred tax (88259846) 38934482

IV. PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX 23384761 437849629
Add/(Less) Taxation for earlier years
– Current Tax (10458446) (2716521)
– Fringe Benefit tax (457856) 40487

V. NET PROFIT 12468459 435173595
Add : Balance Brought Forward From Last year’s Account 1034988059 685462452

VI. AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 1047456518 1120636047

VII. APPROPRIATION
Proposed Dividend 12187488 30404169
Provision for Taxation on Proposed Dividend 2071264 5167189
Dividend Earlier years (including Dividend tax) — 76630
Transfer to General Reserve — 50000000

VIII. BALANCE CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 1047456518 1034988059
Earning per share:
– Basic 0.20 7.33
– Diluted 0.17 5.40

Notes on Accounts “W”
As per our Separate report of even date attached
For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(PRAVEEN KUMAR JAIN) (ANIL GUPTA) (RAJEEV GUPTA)
Partner Chairman-cum-Managing Director Executive Director (Finance)
M.No- 85629
Place : New Delhi (KISHORE KUNAL) (ADARSH JAIN)
Dated : 20th June, 2009 Company Secretary Asst. General Manager (Finance)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2009

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before tax Extra ordinary items (61070085) 648088541

Adjustments for :

Write back on repurchase of FCCBs (263558122) —

Exchange (Profit)/Loss on Revaluation of FCCB —  (121151000)

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Investments  771836  (142542)

Depreciation  115749063  81192434

Dividend Received  (53923)  (26766)

Financial Charges  566145794  369086333

Provision for leave encashment/ Gratuity  (830355)  9945533

Write back/Amortisation of Employee Compensation  (13988027)  20507577

Amortisation of FCMITDA 1470594  —

Loss on Derivative 64062337  36738019

Loss on sales of Assets  2357231  339239

Operating Profit before working capital changes 411056343 1044577368

Adjustments for :

Trade & Other Receivables  111208213 (928720650)

Inventories  836560818  (650596339)

Trade & Other Payables  (473052714) 446256269

Cash Generated from operations  885772660  (88483352)

Financial Charges (Net)  (566145794) (369086333)

Direct Taxes paid (Net)  (85804856) (151048920)

Cash flow before Extra ordinary items  233822010 (608618605)

Extra Ordinary Items  — —

Net Cash from operating activities  233822010 (608618,605)

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Fixed assets and other capital expenditure  (558557343) (988645341)

Sale of investments  1359364 620512

Sale of Fixed Assets  230530329 2851421

Dividend Received  53923 26766

Net Cash from investing activities  (326613727) (985146642)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2009 (Contd...)

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings (Net of repayments) 159608608 (69726076)

Finance lease liabilities (Net)  (2166116) 1165060

Inter corporate & other deposits (Net of repayments)  (6980000) (4965000)

Sales Tax Deferment(Net of repayments)  (3640630) (10925722)

Working capital facilities from banks  212778400  811623355

Proceeds from Issue of Shares (Including premium)  3259775 —

Loss on Derivative Paid  (100800356) —

Conversion of FCCB into equity Shares including premium  — 132084500

Decrease in FCCB liability excluding Exchange Flactuations  (540687500) (132084500)

Unsecured Non Convertible Debuntures redeemed  (150000000) (150000000)

Proceeds from Commercial Paper  200000000 —

Write back on Repurchase of FCCBs  263558122 —

Dividend paid  (30404169) (29549756)

Tax on Dividend  (5167189) (5022682)

Net Cash from Financing Activities  (641055) 542599179
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (93432772) (1051166068)

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 1st April (Opening Balance)  323643740  1374809808

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31st March (Closing Balance)  230210968 323643740

Cash and Bank Balance includes Rs.6,72,91,262/- (Previous year Rs. 26,40,53,735/-) held as Margin money / lien
against gurantees issued by the Banks/others and balance in unclaimed dividend account Rs. 6,94,746/-(previous year
Rs. 4,49,920/-)

Note : Figures in brackets represent cash out flow

As per our Separate report of even date attached

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(PRAVEEN KUMAR JAIN) (ANIL GUPTA) (RAJEEV GUPTA)
Partner Chairman-cum-Managing Director Executive Director (Finance)
M.No- 85629

Place : New Delhi (KISHORE KUNAL) (ADARSH JAIN)
Dated : 20th June, 2009 Company Secretary Asst. General Manager (Finance)
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As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “A” : SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
11,00,00,000 (Previous year 11,00,00,000) Equity shares 220000000 220000000
of Rs.2/- each fully paid
3,00,000 ( Previous year 3,00,000) Preference Shares
of Rs. 100/- each 30000000 30000000

250000000 250000000

Issued, Subscribed & paid-up 121874876 121616676
60,937,438 (Previous year 60,808,338) Equity shares
of Rs.2/- each fully paid

121874876 121616676

Note: 87,16,215 Equity shares of Rs.2/- each were alloted to as fully paid shares as per  Scheme of amalgamation without
payment being received in cash

As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “B” : RESERVES & SURPLUS

Securities Premium Account
As per last Balance Sheet 759789896 631382642
Add : Addition During the year 3001575 128407254
Add: Transf. from Employee Stock Option Outstanding 6519550 769311021 — 759789896
General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 133841518 83841518
Less: Transf. to Fixed Assets for Revaluation of Foreign 49239870 —
Currency Monetary Items for earlier years (net of tax)
Less: Transferred to FCMITDA for earlier years 44000439 —
Add : Depreciation written back for earlier years 767166 —
Add : Transferred from Profit & loss account — 41368375 50000000 133841518
Employees Stock Option
Employees Stock Option outstanding 20507577 32812123
Less: Transferred to Proft & Loss Account 13988027 —
Less: Transferred to Securities Premium Account 6519550 —
Less: Deffered employees compensation — — 12304546 20507577
Profit & Loss Account
As per Annexed Account 1033197766 1034988059

1843877162 1949127050

SCHEDULE “C” : SECURED LOANS

Term Loan From Banks 350950835 164331087
Interest Accrued and Due 1033068 351983903 338390 164669477

For Working Capital From Banks 1946449774 1731972744
Interest Accrued and Due — 1946449774 1698630 1733671374
Hire Purchase Finance 8588550 10754666

2307022227 1909095517
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SCHEDULE “E” : FIXED ASSETS
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

S. Description of As At Additions Deductions As At As At For the Dedu- As At As At As At
No. Assets 31.03.2008 31.03.2009 31.03.2008 Year ctions 31.03.2009 31.03.2009 31.03.2008

1 Land (Free Hold) 3660737 — — 3660737 — — — — 3660737 3660737

2 Land (Lease Hold) 377446921 — 229513780 147933141 — — — — 147933141 377446921

3 Building 499623312 366478423 — 866101735 30148458 19357153 215908 49289703 816812032 469474854

4 Plant & Machinery 1086262616 684511159 15977401 1754796374 209517593 77848357 15180296 272185654 1482610720 876745023

5 Electrical Fittings &
Equipement 113980978 66996232 — 180977210 9282006 6916193 21486 16176714 164800497 104698972

6 Furniture,Fixtures &
Office Equipement 67996164 33588448 3532271 98052341 14579216 6779374 2651498 18707092 79345250 53416949

7 Vehicles 11635341 914091 1805139 10744293 3195595 1100640 639009 3657226 7087067 8439746

8 Assets Acquired under
Hire Purchase :
— Vehicles 17718086 3891017 — 21609103 2233582 1901013 — 4134595 17474508 15484504

9 Intangible Assets :
— Software 6157882 4665663 — 10823545 1355499 1846333 — 3201832 7621713 4802383

TOTAL : 2184482037 1161045034 250828592 3094698479 270311949 115749063 18708197 367352814 2727345665 1914170088

PREVIOUS YEAR 1401988936 787893055 5399954 2184482037 191328809 81192434 2209294 270311949 1914170088 1210660127

Notes :
(a) Carrying value of Assets acquired under hire purchase as on 31.03.2009 exclude the amount  related to hire purchase agreement settled during the current year.
(b) Additions in gross block and Capital Work-in-Progress includes exchange loss (net) of Rs. 26,94,98,917/- (Previous Year NIL) on account of exchange fluctuation.
(c) Write back of depreciation Rs. 7,67,166/- (Previous Year NIL) for earlier years on account foreign exchange difference arising on Long Term Foreign Currency Monetary

Items has been included in “DEPRECIATION - DEDUCTIONS”.

As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “F” : CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Capital Work in Progress (Including Material lying at Site) 47273542 304084558
Capital Advances 19210784 93922685
Pre operative Expenses (Net) — 1508264
Capital Goods in transit 268092 225685

66752418 399741192

As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “D” : UNSECURED LOANS

Deposits
— Inter Corporate Deposits 1500000 8700000
— Directors — 2140000
— Others 38040000 39540000 35680000 46520000

Sales Tax Deferment — 3640630
Non Convertible Debentures
(Repayable within one Year)
— Others — 150000000
Commercial Paper
(Repayable within one Year )
— Banks 200000000 —
Other Loans
— Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 1132625000 1310244500

1372165000 1510405130
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As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “G” : INVESTMENTS
LONG TERM

OTHER INVESTMENTS
(UNQUOTED)
— KEI International Limited — —

76558 (Previous Year 76558) Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each fully Paid (Bonus Shares)

— U212GR UTI Wealth Builder Fund 200000 200000
20000 ( previous year 20000 ) Units of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

— 1285 ING Vysya CUB Fund — 500000
Nil ( previous year 50000 ) Units of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

— Opti Mix Dynamic Multi-Manager FoF Scheme- Series 2 — 500000
Nil ( previous year 50000 ) Units of Rs.10/- each fully paid

— Principal Large Cap Fund — 20000
Nil ( previous year 1193.317 ) Units of Rs.10/- each fully paid

— Reliance Equity Advantage Fund — 500000
Nil ( previous year 50000 ) Units of Rs.10/- each fully paid

— Principal PNB Long Term Equity Fund 3 Year plan- Series II — 600000
Nil ( previous year 60000 ) Units of Rs.10/- each fully paid

(QUOTED) :
— State Bank of India 37030 37030

67 (Previous Year 67) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
— Maryada Commercial Enterprises & Investment Co. Ltd. — 11200

Nil (Previous Year 1500) Equity Shares of  Rs. 10/- each fully paid
— PNB Gilts Ltd. 180000 180000

6000 (Previous year 6000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
— Punjab National Bank 68200 68200

2200 ( previous year 2200 ) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
— Dena Bank 70065 70065

2595 ( previous year 2595 ) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
— ICICI Bank Ltd 472500 472500

900 ( previous year 900 ) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
— YES Bank Ltd 11430 11430

254 (previous year 254 ) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

1039225 3170425

Notes:
1. Quoted Investments

— Aggregate of Book Value 839225 850425
— Aggregate of Market Value 1484584 2263061

2. During the year the following investments were subscribed and sold :
— KEI Power Limited 440000 —

44000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
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As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “H” : FOREIGN CURRENCY MONETARY ITEM TRANSLATION
              DIFFERENCE ACCOUNT (FCMITDA)

During the year 46680340 —
Transferred from Genaral Reserve for earlier years (44000439) 2679901 — —
Less : Written off to Proft & Loss Account 1470594 —

1209307 —

SCHEDULE “I” : INVENTORIES

(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)
Stores, Spares & Consumables 19431720 20615183
Raw Materials 151297535 345371753
Stock in Process 673231159 932187776
Finished Goods (including Traded Items) 625276349 977460131
Packing Materials 21570166 21705143
Scrap 4221007 13069999
Goods In Transit 79660794 100839563

1574688730 2411249548

SCHEDULE “J” : SUNDRY DEBTORS

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Over six Months 344144192 191797381
Other Debts 2162417040 2394930006

2506561232 2586727387

SEHEDULE “K” : CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash Balances Including imprest 3703718 2285160
Balance with Scheduled Banks:
— Current Accounts 1963262 12118359
— Fixed Deposits* 220855563 268123872
— Unclaimed Dividend 694746 223513571 449920 280692151
Balance with Other Banks:
— Current Accounts** 2993679 2353049
— Deposit Accounts*** — 2993679 38313380 40666429

230210968 323643740

*Includes unutilised balance of FCCB issue 59484801 168266280
** Balance with Other Banks
— HSBC Bank Plc, London — 38313380
— HSBC Bank Middle East Limited, Dubai 2993679 2353049
Maximum Balances in Current accounts with
— HSBC Bank Plc, London 38601012 1177359464
— HSBC Bank Middle East Limited, Dubai 133136531 64944950
***Maximum Balances in Deposit accounts with
—HSBC Bank Plc, London 38601012 1177359464

Note : Balance with other Banks include Rs Nil (Previous year 38313380/-) lying in Deposit Account being unutilised
Money of FCCB Issue
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As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “L” : LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received 117706468 180034445
Loans & Advances to Workers & staff 7289656 7711380
Claims Recoverable from Government 88970910 106813779
Balance with Excise Authorities 176669245 138905468
Advance Tax (Net of Provisions) 41765883 —
Earnest Money/Security Deposits 34842803 38640388

467244965 472105460

SCHEDULE “M” : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Project Work in Progress 19913319 4328999

19913319 4328999

SCHEDULE “N” : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors *
— Raw Materials 1334946131 1811668466
— Others 470993740 1805939871 332429737 2144098203
Other Liabilities 53158224 150685844
Advance/Security Deposit received 56179721 96154896
Investor Education and Protection Fund shall be
credited by the following amount namely **
— Unclaimed Dividend 694746 449920
Interest Accrued but not due 6471390 4107803

1922443952 2395496666
PROVISIONS
Provision for Leave Encashment/Gratuity 13323860 14154215
Provision for Proposed Dividend 12187488 30404169
Provision for tax on Proposed Dividend 2071264 5167189
Provision for loss on Derivative — 36738019
Provision for Taxation (Net of Payments) — 27582612 29317671 115781263

1950026564 2511277929

* Includes dues to micro ,small and medium enterprises Rs. NIL (Previous Year NIL)
** No amount is due on March 31, 2009 for credit to Investor Education and protection Fund (Fund). Amount remaining

due  after adjustement of amounts to be claimed from the Company will be transferred on the respective due dates to
Fund.

SCHEDULE “O” : INCOME FROM TURNKEY PROJECTS

Income from Trunkey Projects 7988657 —
Increse/(Decrese) in Work-in-progress :
Closing Work In Progress 19913319 4328999
Less Opening Work in Progress 4328999 15584320 — 4328999

23572977 4328999
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As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “P” : OTHER INCOME

Dividend- Long Term Investments (Other than trade) 53923 26766
Profit on Sale of Long Term Investments — 142542
Exchange Fluctuation ( Net) 10416662 30960068
Drawback Income 17091569 9118068
Leave Encashment Liability Written Back 1041824 —
Write back on repurchase of FCCBs 263558122 —
Miscellenous Income 1335632 2391751

293497732 42639195

SCHEDULE “Q” : INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCK

Opening Stock
— Finished Goods 977460131 543136305
— Stock in Process 932187776 846189547
— Scrap 13069999 1922717906 5569669 1394895521
Less : Closing Stock
— Finished Goods 625004031 977460131
— Stock in Process 673231159 932187776
— Scrap 4221007 1302456197 13069999 1922717906

(620261709) 527822385

SCHEDULE “R” : MATERIALS

Raw Materials Consumed
— Opening Stock 345371753 306798747
Add : Purchases 7313485216 7092232915

7658856969 7399031662
Less : Closing Stock 151297535 345371753

7507559434 7053659909
Less : Capitalized for Own Use 16384867 7491174567 11217759 7042442150
Turnkey Project Materials
— Opening Stock — —
Add : Purchases 8508899 2948718

8508899 2948718
Less: Closing Stock — 8508899 — 2948718
Traded Items
— Opening Stock — —
Add : Purchases 4208099 1470015

4208099 1470015
Less: Closing Stock 272318 3935781 — 1470015

7503619247 7046860883
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As at As at
31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE “S” : MANUFACTURING,SELLING & OTHER EXPENSES
Stores, Spares & Consumables 31115211 47262039
Packing Expenses 262510334 206508242
Job Work Charges 120834834 95622284
Power, Fuel & Lighting 169318878 146375235
Repairs & Maintenance
— Plant & Machinery 45657349 31540635
— Building 5439211 3056406
— Others 5595398 56691958 6550813 41147854
Freight,Handling and Octroi (Net) 151479719 140622397
Rebate,Discount,Commission on Sales 72604574 67271163
Bed Debt Written off 23618773 —
Rates & Taxes 8142495 1262571
Rent 23745472 16858088
Insurance (Net) 7551901 11696258
Travelling & Conveyance 24428781 22606360
Advertisement & Publicity 33798317 20409882
Auditors’ Remuneration 2020000 2000000
Loss on sales of Assets (Net) 2357231 339239
Loss on Sale of Long Term Investments (Net) 771836 —
Communication Expenses 12112979 10097803
Donations 2941701 4540176
Loss on Derivative 64062337 36738019
Professional & Consultancy Charges 46629504 10205152
Miscellaneous Expenses 70596460 49161763

1187333295 930724525

SCHEDULE “T” : PAYMENT TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES
Salaries,Wages & Others Benefits 158253162 110972415
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 13323462 10693747
Welfare Expenses 9929199 9115410
Deffered Employees Compensation written back (13988027) 20507577

167517796 151289149

SCHEDULE “U” : MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION
Salaries 5875200 4424400
Commission — 31168616
Rent 600000 420000
Contribution to Provident Fund 18720 18720
Perquisites 249963 733968
Director’s Meeting Fee 560000 590000

7303883 37355704

SCHEDULE “V” : FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest
— Term Loan 21489722 21045788
— Working Capital Facilities (Net) 212448964 97406420
— FCCBs 9399842 12528515
— Others 212815208 456153736 173777230 304757953
Financial Charges & Commission 109992058 64328380

566145794 369086333
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SCHEDULE – “W”
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts for the Year ended 31st March, 2009

1. Statement of significant accounting policies
(a) The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention except where otherwise stated.
(b) Fixed Assets :

i) Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. The cost includes
inward freight and other directly attributable expenses.

ii) In respect of qualifying assets, all expenses relating to the projects up to the commencement of production, including
interest on borrowed loan are capitalised. Financing Cost incurred on General Borrowing used for projects is
capitalised at the weighted average cost. The amount of such borrowing is determined after setting off the amount
of internal accruals.

iii) The cost of any software purchased initially along with the computer hardware is being capitalised along with the
cost of the hardware. Any subsequent acquisition/up-gradation of software is being capitalised as an asset.

vi) The cost of capitalized software is amortised over a period of five years from the date of its acquisition.
v) In accordance with and at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Acts, 1956 depreciation is provided

by straight line method. Addition/deletion in the cost of the fixed assets due to exchange fluctuation in long term
foreign currency monetary items arising due to difference in exchange rate vis a vis initial recording and reporting
date are depreciated over the balance life of the assets.

vi) No write off is being made in respect of leasehold land, as the lease is a long lease.
(c) Investments:

Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments is made only if,
such decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the management.

(d) Inventories:
i) Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.
ii) Raw materials are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.
iii) Stock in Process is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
iv) Stores, spares and consumables and packing materials are valued at cost.
v) Scrap is valued at estimated realisable value.
vi) Cost of Raw Materials is determined on first in first out (FIFO) basis. Work in process includes raw material costs

and allocated production overheads. Cost of finished goods is determined by taking derived material costs and others
overheads.

(e) Revenue Recognition:
i) Sales are accounted for on despatch of goods from the factory to the customers. Sales are net of return and include

excise duty wherever directly chargeable from customers, but exclude sales tax.
ii)  Turnkey Projects

– In the case of lump-sum Turnkey contracts, as proportion of actual direct costs of the work to latest estimated
total direct cost of the work.

iii) No income has been taken into account on jobs for which:
- The terms have been agreed to at lump-sum turnkey contracts and physical progress is less than 25%.
- Where physical progress is less than 25%, the cost of such jobs is carried forward as work-in-progress at actual

direct cost.
iv) Other claims including interest on outstanding are accounted for when there is virtual certainty of ultimate collection.

(f) Excise Duty:
Excise Duty has been accounted on the basis of both payments made in respect of goods cleared as also provision made
for goods lying in factory premises. CENVAT credit is accounted on accrual basis on purchases of materials.

(g) Employee Benefits:
i) Liability in respect of Gratuity, a defined benefit plan, is being paid to a fund maintained by LIC and administered

through a separate irrevocable trust set up by the company. Difference between the fund balance and accrued
liability at the end of the year based on actuarial valuation is charged to Profit & Loss Account.

ii) Liability in respect of leave encashment, a terminal employee benefit, being defined benefit plan, is recognized on
the basis of actuarial valuation.

iii) Contributions with respect to Provident Fund, is recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account of the
year in which the related service is rendered.
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iv) In respect of employees stock options, the excess of intrinsic value on the date of grant over the exercise price is
recognized as deferred compensation cost amortized over vesting period.

(h) Foreign Currency Transactions:
i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of

transaction.
ii) Foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled at the year end are translated at year end rate. Premium in respect

of forward contracts is accounted over the period of contract. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency
transactions are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise.

iii) Exchange difference arising on reporting of long term foreign currency monetary items:-
- in so far as they relate to the acquisition of a depreciable capital assets are adjusted in the cost of assets
- In other cases are accumulated in a ‘ Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account

(FCMITDA)’ and amortised over the balance period of such long term monetary item but not beyond 31st
March, 2011.

(i) Reserves:
The difference between depreciation on the revalued value of the asset and depreciation on their historical cost is
transferred from Revaluation Reserve to Profit & Loss Account.

(j) Miscellaneous Expenditure:
i) Preliminary expenses are being written off over a period of ten years.
ii) Public issue expenditure/FCCB issue expenditure is being written off against Securities / share premium, net of

taxes, in the year of issue.
(k) Taxes on Income:

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period. Deferred tax is
recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on timing differences, being the
difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods.

(l) Deferred Revenue Expenditure:
Deferred Revenue Expenditure is charged as an expenditure in the year in which it is incurred.

(m) Impairment of Fixed Assets:
Consideration is given at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of the
carrying amount of the Company’s fixed assets. If any indication exists, an asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor.
Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses
recognised for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. However, the increase in carrying amount of an asset due to
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the assets in prior years.

(n) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts and legal aspects of the matter involved.

(o) Provision for contractual obligations
The provision for estimated liabilities on account of guarantees & warranties etc. in respect of lump-sum turnkey
contracts awarded to the company are being made on the basis of assessment of risk and consequential probable
liabilities on each such job made by the management.

2. Contingent Liabilities
(a) Unutilised letter of credits Rs. 4,89,53,838/- (Previous Year Rs. 6,25,47,179/- )
(b) Financial Bank Guarantees outstanding Rs.13,91,23,433/- (Previous Year Rs. 8,54,89,013/-)
(c) Outstanding Bills discounted Rs. 25,01,53,307/- (Previous year Rs. 38,87,75,151/-)
(d) Sales Tax demands under appeal Rs. 18,67,125/- (Previous year Rs 8,49,920/-)
(e) Income tax demands under appeal Rs 4,68,458/- (Previous year Rs. NIL)
(f) Excise and Service tax Demands under appeal Rs. 6,01,39,959/- (Previous year Rs 19,58,610/-)
(g) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs.59,12,869/- (Previous year Rs. 18,020/-)
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3. 1% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (‘FCCBs’) have an option to convert bonds into Equity Shares at Conversion
Price Rs.71/- per share (adjusted for sub-division of equity shares & subsequent reset of conversion price pursuant to
Clause 11 of the Terms & Conditions of Bonds) at a fixed exchange rate (Rs.44.65 = US$1) between 15th December,
2006 and 30th October, 2011. The conversion price will be subject to certain adjustments as detailed in the offering
circular such as bonus issue, right issue, extraordinary dividend etc. Unless previously converted, redeemed or repurchased
or cancelled, the Company will redeem these bonds at 145.54 percent of the principal amount on 30th October, 2011. As
at March 31, 2009 out of the total issue, FCCBs aggregating to USD 3.35 Million were converted into equity shares
during previous year. ‘FCCBs’ aggregating to USD 10.55 Million have been repurchased at discount during the year.
Balance of ‘FCCB’ outstanding as on March 31, 2009 have been included and disclosed in the schedule of “Unsecured
Loans”. In view of these developments the Company expects that no premium would be payable and on that basis the
same is not provided for. However, the premium, if paid would be adjusted against the Securities Premium Account.
Accordingly premium maximum amount payable being Rs. 51,57,97,425/- (Previous year Rs.59,66,85,345/-) would
be accounted for and adjusted against Securities Premium Account in the year of such redemption or repurchase or
cancellation.

4. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account Rs. 38,00,000/- (Previous Year Rs.
25,52,00,000/-).

5. (i) Working capital facilities from Banks are secured by 1st pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation on the entire
current assets including raw material, stock in process , finished goods, consumable stores & spares and receivables
of the Company, 1st pari-passu charge on present and future fixed assets at SP-920 & SP-922, RIICO Industrial
Area Phase III, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan) and at D-90, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase I, New Delhi, 2nd
pari-passu charge by equitable mortgage of property of the Land and Building at 99/2/7, Madhuban Industrial
Estate, Village Rakholi, Silvassa (D & N H) and SP-919, RIICO Industrial Area Phase III, Bhiwadi , Distt. Alwar
(Rajasthan) both present and future. Further, they are secured by personal guarantee of Shri. Anil Gupta, Chairman
Cum Managing Director of the Company.

(ii) Term Loans from banks are secured by 1st pari-passu charge on present and future fixed assets of the company at
99/2/7, Madhuban Industrial Area, Village Rakholi, Silvassa (D & N H), SP-919, RIICO Industrial Area, Phase
III , Bhiwadi , Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan) and Plot No. A-280, 281, 282, 283, RIICO Industrial Area, Chopanki,
Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan).

(iii) Hire Purchase Finance is secured against assets financed from it.

6. Fixed Deposits with banks amounting to Rs.6,72,91,262/-(Previous year Rs. 26,40,53,735/-) are under lien with
banks.

7. Interest on working capital facilities are net of interest received Rs. 2,69,33,897/- (Previous year Rs. 4,94,39,228/-).

8. Sales include Export benefits Rs. 42,89,479 /- (Previous Year Rs. 39,05,692/-).

9. Company incorporated KEI Power Limited as a subsidiary Company on 28th April 2008 and which ceased to be
subsidiary w.e.f. 7th November, 2008.

10. Consequent to cancellation of unexercised options under KEI Employee stock option scheme 2006 (KEI ESOS 2006)
Rs 1,39,88,027/- has been written back to profit & loss account during the year.

11. During the year 1% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) of Rs USD 10.55 million have been bought back.
This has resulted in profit of Rs 26,35,58,122/- which has been included under ‘Miscellaneous Income’. Prorata
exchange difference on these FCCBs transferred to ‘Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account
(FCMITDA)’ has been charged to Profit & loss account Rs 5,77,297/-.

12. Up to 31st March, 2008 the company was charging foreign exchange difference arising on long term foreign currency
monetary items viz FCCBs, Foreign Currency Term Loan to profit and loss account. Pursuant to changes made in
AS-11 vide Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2009, during current year the company has exercised
option of deferring the said charge to the Profit and Loss account, in respect of accounting periods commencing on or after
December 7, 2006. As a result, such foreign exchange difference relating to the acquisition of depreciable capital assets
have been adjusted with cost of such assets and would be depreciated over the balance life of the assets and in other
cases has been accumulated in ‘FCMITDA’.

Had the Company continued to use the earlier basis of accounting for foreign exchange difference arising on FCCBs/
Foreign Currency Term Loan, the net profit after tax for the current year would have been lower by Rs. 35,37,36,522/-
and would change to a loss of Rs. 34,12,68,063/-, the net block of fixed assets would have been lower by Rs. 25,12,68,265/-
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and capital work in progress would have been lower by Rs. 1,11,36,933/-

Further, such foreign exchange difference amounting to Rs. 9,24,73,143/- (net of depreciation of Rs. 7,67,166/- and net
of tax of Rs. 2,53,54,691/-) which was recognised as gain in the Profit & loss account for the financial year 2007-08 is
adjusted from the General Reserve in the current year.

13. Amount of Excise Duty deducted from the turnover is relatable to sales made during the year and the amount recognized
separately in the statement of Profit & Loss is related to the difference between the closing stock & opening stock.

14. Proceeds of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB’s) have been utilized as per objects of the issue in following
manner:-

2008-2009 2007-2008Particulars Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Capital Expenditure/Advances(Net) 150413932 928749977
Exchange Fluctuation (Net) (270084) 75232790
Interest Income (Net) (8305795) (28047167)
Pending utilization in Bank (Net) 59484801 201322854

Total 201322854 1177258454

15. Following expenses were capitalized and allocated to fixed assets:-

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.09 31.03.08

Amount(Rs.) Amount(Rs.)

Opening Balance 1508264 (6973891)
Bank Charges & Commission 40101 101764
Interest on Term Loan 4851468 —
Freight, Handling, Octrai & Insurance 13305 150800
Interest on FCCB 5246603 6071992
Power Fuel & Lighting 1508924 2643756
Traveling & Conveyance 54532 41065
Communication Expenses 43664 278805

Advertising & Publicity — 73970
Stores, Spares & Consumables — 1762833
Payment to and provision for employees 2481336 2611959
Labour charges 100882 235257
Insurance — 663
Repairs & Maintenance 7629 98032
Rates & Taxes — 3331
Misc. Expenses 375504 1079978

Total 16232213 8180314
Less: Interest Income 1211904 6071992

Net 15020309 2108322
Less: Allocated to Fixed Assets 15020309 9827279
Less: Transferred to Profit and Loss Account — (9227221)

Balance — 1508264
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16. Computation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.09 31.03.08

Amount(Rs.) Amount(Rs.)

Net Profit before tax
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (61070085) 648088541
Add : Director’s Remuneration (Excluding PF,
Salary to ED (Finance) & Meeting Fee) 4009963 34120276
Add : Loss on sale of assets (net) 2357231 339239
Less : Profit /(Loss)on Sale of Long Term Investments (net) (771836) 142542
Net Profit/(Loss) (53931055) 682405514
Net Profit/(Loss) for Managerial Remuneration NIL 682405514
Calculation of Director’s Remuneration (including commission)
@ 5% of the Net Profit for the period NIL 34120276
Total Managerial Remuneration
— Excluding Directors Meeting Fees and contribution to Provident

& Other Funds and Executive Director (Finance)’s Salary 4009963 34120276
— Including Directors Meeting Fees and contribution to Provident &

Other Funds and Executive Director (Finance)’s Salary 7303883 37355704

Note : In view of the inadequate profit, minimum remuneration as approved and as per the Companies Act, 1956 has
been paid/provided.

17. Insurance Premium of Rs. 20,60,550/-(Previous year Rs. 20,60,550/-) on Keyman Insurance Policy has been charged
to Profit & Loss Account. Maturity value of such policy will be accounted for on receipt basis.

18. Auditor’s Remuneration:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.09 31.03.08

Amount(Rs.) Amount(Rs.)

As Auditor*
— Audit fee 1400000 1400000
— Tax Audit 200000  200000
— In other capacity 420000  400000

* Excludes Service Tax Rs.2,08,472/- (Previous year Rs. 2,47,200/-)

19. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are attributable to following items:

As At As At
31.03.09 31.03.08

Amount(Rs.) Amount(Rs.)

Assets
Provision for unencashed leave 2966072 3320188
FCCB/GDR Issue Expenses 11322813 15357528
Carried forward Loss 75605717 —
Unabsorbed Depreciation 99773762 —

Total 189668364 18677716
Liabilities
Depreciation 189668364 132292253

Note :- As required by Accounting Standard-22 (‘AS-22’), in view of existence of Carried forward losses and unabsorbed
depreciation under tax laws, Deferred Tax Assets have been recognised only to the extent they are virtually certain to be
realised.
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20. Earning per share (EPS) pursuant to Accounting Standard-20 (‘AS-20’) has been calculated as follows:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.09 31.03.08

Profit after taxation (Rs) 12468459 435173595

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 60808338 58969715
Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year 67203 423557
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS 60875541 59393272
Add: Adjustment for FCCB outstanding convertible in equity shares 13898099 17997809
Add: Adjustment for ESOP outstanding convertible in equity shares — 649745
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS 74773640 78040825
Basic Earning Per Share (Rs). 0.20 7.33
Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs.) 0.17 5.58
Face value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 2.00 2.00

21. (a) Future lease obligation by way of lease rental as follows: (In Rupees)

Due Total Minimum lease Future Interest on Present value of
payments outstandings outstandings minimum lease payments

2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08

Within one year 5351867 5974194 831804 979091 4520063 4995103

Later than one year and
not later than five years 4435739 6500830 367252 741267 4068487 5759563

More than Five years NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total: 9787606 12475024 1199056 1720358 8588550 10754666

(b) Operating Leases- Other than non-cancellable
The Company has entered into lease transactions during the current financial year mainly for leasing of factory/
office/residential premises and company leased accommodations for its employees for periods upto 10 years. Terms
of lease include terms of renewal, increase in rents in future periods and terms of cancellation. The Operating lease
payments recognized in the Profit & Loss account amount to Rs 2,43,45,472/- (Previous year Rs. 1,72,78,088/-)
for the leases, which commenced on or after April 1, 2001.

22. Disclosure pursuant to clause 32 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges is given below:
a) Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans given to Associates: (In Rupees)

Name As at 31.03.09 Maximum Balance As at 31.03.08 Maximum Balance
during the year during the year

Sunil Gupta NIL NIL NIL 3984000
Projection Finanicial &
Management Consultants
Pvt. Ltd. 6000000/- 6000000/- 3000000 4086200

Note :- These are security deposits for premises taken on rent by the Company.

b) Investments by the Loanee in the shares of the Company: (In Rupees)

Name As At 31.03.09 As At 31.03.08

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Sunil Gupta 10500 21000 NIL NIL

Projection Finanicial &
Management Consultants
Pvt. Ltd. NIL NIL NIL NIL
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23. Loan & Advances include Rs. 51,00,000/- (Previous Year Rs. 51,00,000/-) given to Sanjog Sugar & Eco Power Private
Limited as share application money.

24. Loans & Advances include Deposit given to Limited Companies Rs 4,97,00,000/-. (Previous Year Rs.4,50,00,000/-).

25. Related party Disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard (AS-18) :
(a) Name of Related Parties :-

i) Subsidiary of the company :
KEI Power Limited (from 28th April 2008 to 7th Nov 2008 )

ii) Associate of the company:
KEI International Ltd

iii) Other related parties in the Group where common control exists :
Anil Gupta (HUF)
Projection Financial & Management Consultants Pvt. Ltd.
Subh Laxmi Motels & Inns Pvt. Ltd.
Soubhagya Agency Pvt. Ltd.
Dhan Versha Agency Pvt. Ltd.
KEI Cables Pvt. Ltd.

iv) Functional Directors:
Shri Anil Gupta, Chairman-cum-Managing Director
Shri Rajeev Gupta, Executive Director (Finance)

v) Relatives of Functional Directors:
Shri Sunil Gupta ( Director up to 28th Aug 2008 )
Smt. Archana Gupta (Director)
Smt. Varsha Gupta
Smt. Sumitra Devi Gupta
Smt. Shashi Gupta
Shri Shri Krishan Gupta
Smt. Veena Agarwal

vi) Enterprises over which person mentioned in (v) above are able to exercise significant control:
Sunil Gupta (HUF)
Ashwathama Constructions Pvt. Ltd.

(b) Details of transactions relating to parties referred to in items (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) and (vi):

Particulars Year (i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) Total

Interest paid on deposits 2008-09 - - - - 226618 110000 336618
received 2007-08 - - - - 116902 110302 227204

Credit Balance Outstanding 2008-09 - - - - 2060000 1000000 3060000
as at the year end 2007-08 - 1800000 2300000 140000 2060000 1000000 7300000

Advance Given 2008-09 451510 - - - - - 451510
During the year 2007-08 436200 - - - - - 436200

Debit Balance Outstanding 2008-09 - - - - - - -
as at the year end 2007-08 436200 1800000 2300000 140000 2060000 1000000 7736200

Rent paid for use of assets 2008-09 - - 12000000 - 9225000 600000 21825000
2007-08 - - 8000000 - 6420000 420000 14840000

Managerial remuneration 2008-09 - - - 6743883 - - 6743883
2007-08 - - - 36765704 - - 36765704

Advance commission paid 2008-09 - - - 2907150 - - 2907150
& recovered 2007-08 - - - - - - -

Subscription of 2008-09 440000 - - - - - 440000
Equity shares 2007-08 - - - - - - -

Sale of Equity Shares 2008-09 - - 15000 440000 - - 455000
2007-08 - - - - - - -
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Particulars Year (i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) Total

Expenses Payable 2008-09 - - - - - - -
2007-08 - - - 6730119 - - 6730119

Sale of Fixed Assets 2008-09 - - - - - - -
2007-08 - - 300000 - - - 300000

Director’s Meeting Fee 2008-09 - - - - 70000 - 70000
2007-08 - - - - 90000 - 90000

Security Deposit given for 2008-09 - - 3000000 - - - 3000000
Premises taken on Rent 2007-08 - - 3000000 - - - 3000000

Outstanding premises 2008-09 - - 6000000 - - - 6000000
deposit receivable 2007-08 - - 3000000 - - - 3000000

Dividend Paid on 2008-09 - - 3415188 6730153 810742 50 10956133
Equity Shares 2007-08 - - 3400188 6347830 810692 - 10558710

Amount received on 2008-09 - - - 439603 - - 439603
allotment of Equity shares 2007-08 - - - - - - -
on exercise of ESOPs

(c) Non Financial Transactions:-
(i) Shri Anil Gupta has given personal guarantees to banks for company’s borrowings.
(ii) The remuneration does not include Gratuity and Provision for leave encashment under Accounting Standard-

15 (Revised) , mediclaim and personal accident insurance premium, since the same is not available for individual
employees.

26. Segment information pursuant to Accounting Standard (AS-17) “Segment Reporting”:
a) Information about Primary Business Segments (In Rupees)

Particulars Cables Stainless Steel Wire Others Unallocated Total

2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08

Revenue (Gross)

External 9798246778 8688343343 789937853 1127692290 28672780 4341009 (2382089) 39373915 10614475322 9859750557

Less: Excise Duty 801069481 971439035 59784063 98788752 - - - - 860853544 1070227787

Inter-segment - - - - - - - - - -

Total Revenue (Net) 8997177297 7716904308 730153790 1028903538 28672780 4341009 (2382089) 39373915 9753621778 8789522770

Result

Segment Result 513558685 1201907139 (2814476) 27659985 682455 250880 - - 511426664 1229818004

Unallocated expenditure
net of unallocated income - - - - - - (205128827) (176074419) (205128827) (176074419)

Interest expenses (net) - - - - - - (566145794) (369086333) (566145794) (369086333)

(Loss)/Profit on Sale
of Investment - - - - - - (771836) 142542 (771836) 142542

Dividend Income - - - - - - 53923 26766 53923 26766

Write back on
repurchase of FCCBs - - - - - - 263558122 — 263558122 -

Loss on Derivatives - - - - - - (64062337) (36738019) (64062337) (36738019)

Profit before taxation 513558685 1201907139 (2814476) 27659985 682455 250880 (572496749) (581729463) (61070085) 648088541

Taxation - - - - - - - - 73538544 (212914946)

Net Profit - - - - - - - - 12468459 435173595

Other Information

Segment Assets 6879312296 6938773474 271041095 464281293 28517123 6473571 413846783 702438076 7592717297 8111966414

Segment Liabilities 1544219932 2173116596 41795137 132749306 5399073 2365873 4037799649 3736161338 5629213791 6044393113

Capital expenditure
(excluding capital work
in progress) 1143560906 759968123 8250491 14440190 - - 9233636 13484742 1161045034 787893055

Depreciation 101304098 64328337 8947065 12658003 - - 5497900 4206094 115749063 81192434

Amortisation of
FCMITDA - - - - - - 1470594 - 1470594 -
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b) Information about Secondary Business Segment (In Rupees)

Revenue for Geographical India Outside India Total

Market 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08

External Revenue (Gross) 8993593447 8472589677 1620881875 1387160880 10614475322 9859750557
Less: Excise Duty 860853544 1070227787 — — 860853544 1070227787
Inter-segment

Total Revenue(Net) 8132739903 7402361890 1620881875 1387160880 9753621778 8789522770

Carrying amount of
segment assets 7589626838 8108967287 3090459 2999127 7592717297 8111966414

Additions to fixed assets 1171741158 787893055 55460 — 1171796618 787893055

c) Notes :
i) The Company is organised into business segments, namely:

— Cables comprising of HT & LT Power Cables, Control and Instrumentation Cables, Winding Wires &
Flexible and House Wires

— Stainless Steel Wire comprising of Stainless Steel Wire.
— Others (Turnkey projects etc.)
Segments have been identified and reported taking into account, the nature of products and services, the
differing risks and returns, the organisation structure, and the internal financial reporting systems.

ii) Segment Revenue in each of the above domestic business segments primarily includes sales, job work income
and export incentives in the respective segments.

Segment Revenue comprising of (in Rupees) 2008-09 2007-08

Sales 10557643943  9806484235

Other income excluding interest(net)/dividend income/
write back on repurchase of FCCBs 56831379  53266322

Total 10614475322  9859750557

iii) The Segment Revenue in the geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows:
a) Revenue within India includes sales to customers located within India and earnings in India.
b) Revenue outside India includes sales to customers located outside India and earnings outside India.

iv) Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the
segments and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

27. Jobs with lump-sum price, where the physical progress of work is less than 25 per cent, the direct cost incurred thereon
amounting to Rs 64,674/- (Rs. Nil) have been carried forward as Work in Progress.

28. In terms of provision of AS –7 on “Construction Contracts” for Lump-sum Turnkey Projects for contract in progress as on
31.03.2009:
a. The aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized Profit upto 31.03.2009 Rs.1,55,19,646/- (Previous year

Rs. 43,28,999/-).
b. The amount of advances received Rs. 4,76,250/- (Previous year Rs. 4,76,250/-).
c. The amount of retention Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)

29. The disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefits” are given below:
Defined Contribution Plan
The amount recognized as an expense in defined contribution plan are as under:

Particulars Expense recognized in 2008-09 Expense recognized in 2007-08
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Contributory Provident Fund &
Employees Pension Scheme, 1995 5675214 4773043

Defined Benefit Plan
The company is having the following Defined Benefit Plans:
• Gratuity (Funded)
• Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
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(In Rupees)

Gratuity Leave Encashment Gratuity Leave Encashment
(Funded) (Unfunded) (Funded) (Unfunded)
2008-09 2008-09 2007-08 2007-08

a) Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate 8.00% 7.50% 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on assets 9.25% — 9.15% —
Expected rate of future salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 15.00%

b) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation
Present value of obligations as at
beginning of year 12748111 9768133 7713762 6993218
Interest cost 1019849 781451 578532 559457
Current Service Cost 1663286 1805383 1220930 2373343
Benefits paid (3467480) (932011) (199052) (664754)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Obligations 6207397 (2696649) 3433939 506869
Present value of obligations
as at end of year 18171163 8726307 12748111 9768133

c) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as on
beginning of year 10228270 — 9562683 —
Expected return on plan assets 1242284 — 864639 —
Contributions 7405521 — — —
Benefits paid (3467480) — (199052) —
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan assets — — — —
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 15408595 — 10228270 —

d) Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 10228270 — 9562683 —
Actual return on plan assets 1242284 — 864639 —
Contributions 740551 — — —
Benefits paid (3467480) — (199052) —
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 15408595 — 10228270 —
Funded status (2762568) (8726307) (2519841) (9768133)
Excess of Actual over estimated return on plan — — — —

e) Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized
Actuarial gain/(Loss) for the year – Obligation (6207397) 2696649 (3433939) (506869)
Actuarial (gain)/Loss for the year – plan assets — — — —
Total (gain)/Loss for the year 6207397 (2696649) 3433939 506869
Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognized in the year 6207397 (2696649) 3433939 506869

f ) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of obligations as at the end of year 18171163 8726307 12748111 9768133
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 15408595 — 10228270 —
Funded status (2762568) (8726307) (2519841) (9768133)
Net (Asset)/liability recognized in balance sheet 2762568 8726307 2519841 9768133

g) Expenses Recognized in statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 1663286 1805383 1220930 2373343
Interest cost 1019849 781451 578532 559457
Expected return on plan assets (1242284) — (864639) —
Net Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognized in the year 6207397 (2696649) 3433939 506869
Expenses recognized in statement
of Profit & Loss 7648248 (109815) 4368762 3439669
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30. The Company has established KEI Employee Stock Option Scheme 2006 (“KEI ESOS 2006”) which was set up so as
to offer and grant, for the benefit of employees (excluding promoters) of the Company, who are eligible under SEBI
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, Options of the Company,
in one or more tranches, and on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the Board / Committee, in
accordance with the provisions of law or guidelines issued by the relevant authorities in this regard.

Under 1st tranche of KEI Employee Stock Option Scheme 2006, 655,705 Stock Options were granted to eligible
employees and Independent Directors. The Share Allotment Committee of the Board had allotted 129,100 equity
shares of Rs.2/- each at an exercise price of Rs.25.25 to eligible employees / directors pursuant to application for exercise
of Options under KEI ESOS 2006. 5,960 options were forfeited due to resignation of employee. Balance 520,645 un-
exercised Options were cancelled by the Board at its meeting held on January 31, 2009. Hence, total Options outstanding
as on March 31, 2009 are NIL. During the year no fresh Options have been granted under KEI ESOS 2006.

31. In terms of Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, the outstanding to these
enterprises are required to be disclosed. However, these enterprises are required to be registered under the Act. In the
absence of the information about registration of the Enterprises under the above Act, the required information could not
be furnished.

32. Additional information pursuant to the provision of Part-II of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.
(A) Particulars of capacity and production

Installed Capacity* Actual Production

Particulars Unit Licenced As At As At Year Ended Year Ended
Capacity 31.03.09 31.03.08 31.03.09 31.03.08

Cables* Kms. N.A. 59600.000 50000.000 38299.473 33723.278

Stainless Steel Wires* Kgs. N.A. 4800000.000 4800000.000 3187047.460 4244395.270

Winding , Flexiable &
House Wiring Kms. N. A. 250000.000 250000.000 47704.735 40879.062

* Installed capacity has been certified by Chairman cum Managing Director and relied upon by Auditors.

(B) Particulars of Stocks & Sales

Opening Stock Closing Stock Sales (Gross)

Particulars As At As At As At As At Year Ended Year Ended
Unit 31.03.09 31.03.08 31.03.09 31.03.08 31.03.09 31.03.08

Cables* Kms. 3034.955 1658.896 2789.234 3034.955 38445.212 32267.652
Rs. 820793631 403486449 527132489 820793631 8757770600 7446288456

Stainless Steel Wires Kgs. 153228.992 204935.240 88958.592 153228.992 3251317.860 4296101.518
Rs. 45624792 67428448 15887398 45624792 779590127 1130039621

Winding, Flexible & Kms. 7693.279 5149.376 5544.674 7693.279 49672.323 38262.567
House Wire** Rs. 111041708 72221408 81984144 111041708 764353528 1044062886

Traded Goods Rs. - - 272318 - 5413971 1910578

Miscellaneous Rs. 13069999 5569669 4221007 13069999 250515717 184182695

Total 990530130 548705974 629497356 990530130 10557643943 9806484235

*Does not include Cable consumption for Captive purposes 99.982 Kms (Previous Year 79.567 Kms)

**Does not include Flexible & House wire consumption for Captive purposes 181.017 Kms (Previous Year 72.592 Kms)
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(C) Particualrs of Raw Matarials consumed

Quantity (Kgs.) Amount (Rs.)

Class of Goods Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2009 31.03.2008 31.03.2009 31.03.2008

Copper 10209095.050 9854481.430 3429712973 3219761592

PVC & DOP 21631170.120 18537121.010 1269799799 1036826999

G.I.Wire/S.S.Wire/Strip 13139219.520 11884341.210 698960503 525293188

Aluminium Wire 12283939.000 11514220.280 1444643462 1362592237

Stainless Steel Rod 3233919.400 4105289.810 493630208 753638266

Others N.A N.A 170812490 155547628

Total 7507559434 7053659909

Less : Material Capitalised 16384867 11217759

Net 7491174567 7042442150

(D) Purchase of Trading Goods

Quantity (Kgs.) Amount (Rs.)

Class of Goods Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2009 31.03.2008 31.03.2009 31.03.2008

Miscellaneous N.A. N.A. 4208099 1470015

(E) Value of imported and Indigeneous materials consumed

Percentage Amount (Rs.)

Class of Goods Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2009 31.03.2008 31.03.2009 31.03.2008

Materials
- Indigeneous 96.13 95.54 7216799481 6739295095
- Imported 3.87 4.46 290759953 314364814

Total 100.00 100.00 7507559434 7053659909

Stores, Spares & Consumables
- Indigenous 99.65 98.66 31007351 46627376
- Imported 0.35 1.34 107860 634663

Total 100.00 100.00 31115211 47262039

Packing Material
- Indigenous 98.55 99.70 258715280 205887221
- Imported 1.45 0.30 3795054 621021

Total 100.00 100.00 262510334 206508242

(F) Value of Imports on CIF basis

Year ended Year ended    Particulars 31.03.09 (Rs.) 31.03.08 (Rs.)
Raw Material Purchases 255604725 285474205

Machinery 282693602 112984415

Stores, Spares & Consumable 98334 634663

Packing Material 6431164 621021
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(G) Earnings in Foreign Exchange (on Accural Basis)

Year ended Year ended    Particulars 31.03.09 (Rs.) 31.03.08 (Rs.)
Sales (Exports) 1620881875 1387160880

Interest Earned on FDR 17548 24771310

(H) Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on Accrual Basis)

Year ended Year ended    Particulars 31.03.09 (Rs.) 31.03.08 (Rs.)
Manufacturing, Selling & Other Expenses
Power, Fuel & Lighting — 8239
Freight, Handling, Octroi & Insurance — 502948
Rebate, Discount, Commission on Sales 22520797 11151560
Rent — 467313
Travelling & Conveyance 2652499 8393943
Communication Expenses 934767 571919
Miscellaneous Expenses 12250789 5457707
Payment to and Provisions for Employees
Salary, Wages & Other Benefits  9132777 4948229
Welfare Expenses 103307 119278
Financial Charges
Interest on Hire Purchase — 206717
Processing Fees 25452500 —
Bank Charges 1846 1020036
Interest on Term Loan (Including Capitalised) 5487894 —
Interest on FCCB Bonds (Including Capitalised) 14646445 13276118
Others
Listing fee 430926 219589

(I) Remittance in foreign currency on account of dividends:

Year ended Year ended    Particulars 31.03.09 (Rs.) 31.03.08 (Rs.)
The year to which dividend relates 2007-08 2006-07

Amounts of dividend remitted (Rs.) 4275764 6062626

Number of Non-Resident Shareholders / OCBs/FIIs 412 124

Number of Equity Shares  8551527*  12125252*

Note: The Company has not remitted any amount in foreign currencies on account of dividends during the year and
does not have information as to the extent to which remittances, if any, in foreign currencies on account of dividends
have been made by / on behalf of non-resident shareholders. The particulars of dividends declared and paid to non-
resident shareholders for the year 2006-07 & 2007-08 are as above.

33. (a) Derivative contracts entered into by the company and outstanding as on 31st March, 2009
For Hedging Currency and Interest Rate Related Risks:
Nominal amounts of derivative contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding as at 31st March, 2009
amount to Rs. 17,45,67,259/- (Previous Year Rs. 61,28,34,069/-). Category wise break up is given below:

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 09 31st March, 08

Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs.)

Interest Rate Swaps(net) —  200000000

Forward Contracts(net)  174567259  412834069
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(b) (i) Amount payable in foreign currency on account of the following

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2009 31 March, 2008

Particulars Rs. Amount in Foreign Rs. Amount in Foreign
 Foreign Currency Foreign Currency

Currency Currency
Imports of Goods 10434209 203443 USD 27003764 672907 USD

1120941 15098 EURO 30134174 485800 EURO
FCCB Bonds 1132625000 22100000 USD 1310244500 32650000 USD
Expenses Payable 7320477 142838 USD 575376 14338 USD

470204 6984 EURO 2417518 38477 EURO
526497 37715 AED 580454 52769 AED

Loan for Car — — — 205383 18671 AED
FCCB Repurchase 278526154 5434657  USD — — —
Creditors
Term Loan 182118799 3553538  USD — — —
Packing Credit Loan 13858000 270400  USD — — —

(b) (ii) Amount receivable in foreign currency on account of the following

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2009 31 March, 2008

Particulars Rs. Amount in Foreign Rs. Amount in Foreign
 Foreign Currency Foreign Currency

Currency Currency

Exports of Goods 363357667 7275665  USD 422004807 10551946 USD

24807549 380566  EURO 62960214 1036361 EURO

6183262 85185  GBP 13797203 176007 GBP

Fixed Deposits with Banks — —  — 38313380 964587 USD

Imprest with Staff — —  — 65052 5914 AED

Balance with Banks —  —  — 603019 15182 USD

—  —  — 18474 299 EURO

2993679 214447 AED 2353049 213914 AED

Prepaid Expenses 750000 15730 USD  — — —

660683 48225 AED — — —

34. Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our Separate report of even date attached

For JAGDISH CHAND & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(PRAVEEN KUMAR JAIN) (ANIL GUPTA) (RAJEEV GUPTA)
Partner Chairman-cum-Managing Director Executive Director (Finance)
M.No- 85629

Place : New Delhi (KISHORE KUNAL) (ADARSH JAIN)
Dated : 20th June, 2009 Company Secretary Asst. General Manager (Finance)
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO THE COMPANIES
ACT, 1956
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

I. REGISTRATION DETAILS
Corporate Identification Number (CIN) L74899DL1992PLC051527 State Code : 55
Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2009

II. CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSAND)
Public Issue Right Issue

NIL NIL
Bonus Issue Private Placement*

NIL 3260
* Including Share Premium

III. POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSAND)
Total Liabilities 5644939 Total Assets 5644939
Source of Funds Paid-up Capital

121875
Reserves and Surplus Secured Loan

1843877 2307022
Unsecured Loans Deferred Tax

1372165 -–
Application of Funds Net fixed assets Investments

2794098 1040
FCMITDA Net Current assets**

1209 2848593
Misc. Expenditure Accumulated Losses

NIL NIL
** Net of current liabilities & provisions

IV. PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY (AMOUNTS IN RS. THOUSAND)
Turnover Total Expenditure
9396972 9458042

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax Profit After Tax
(61070) 12468

Earning Per share Dividend Rate %
0.20 10

V. GENERIC NAME OF PRINCIPAL PRODUCT/SERVICES OF COMPANY (AS PER MONETARY TERMS)
Item Code No. 85
(ITC Code)
(Production Description) CABLES
Item Code No. 72
(ITC Code)
(Production Description) STAINLESS STEEL WIRE
Item Code No. 85
(ITC Code)
(Production Description) WINDING WIRE

(ANIL GUPTA) (RAJEEV GUPTA)
Chairman-cum-Managing Director Executive Director (Finance)

Place : New Delhi (KISHORE KUNAL) (ADARSH JAIN)
Dated : 20th June, 2009 Company Secretary Asst. General Manager (Finance)






